

Book	Policy Manual
Section	900 Community
Title	Relations With Educational Institutions
Number	912
Status	From PSBA
Legal	<u>24 P.S. 1332</u> <u>24 P.S. 1354</u> Pol. 216 Pol. 307

Authority

It is the policy of the Board that lines of communication be maintained by the school district with other districts and institutions that provide programs, training or services not otherwise available to district students and with districts whose resident students are enrolled in programs of this district.

Delegation of Responsibility

Maintaining cooperative and constructive relationships with other educational institutions shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent or designee, ~~who will establish administrative regulations that enable the district to do so.~~

delete

Last Modified by Tammy Medellin on June 3, 2016

Book	Policy Manual
Section	900 Community
Title	Nonschool Organizations/Groups/Individuals
Number	913
Status	From PSBA
Legal	1. Pol. 220
	2. Pol. 707
	3. 24 P.S. 510
	4. 24 P.S. 511
	5. Pol. 121
	6. 24 P.S. 775
	7. Pol. 216
	24 P.S. 779

Purpose

Any requests from nonschool organizations, groups or individuals seeking to have students participate in or be informed of the opportunity to participate in nonschool-sponsored activities, awards or scholarships shall be governed by this policy.

Definitions

Nonschool organizations, groups or individuals - those entities that are not part of the school program, school-sponsored activities, or organized pursuant to the Pennsylvania School Code or Board policy. When employees or Board members act on behalf of a nonschool organization or group, or on their own behalf, this policy applies to them. Students are governed by a separate and distinct Board policy regarding student expression and distribution and posting of materials.[1]

Nonschool materials - any printed or written materials prepared by nonschool organizations, groups or individuals for posting or general distribution which are not prepared as a part of the curricular or approved extracurricular programs of the district. This includes such things as fliers, invitations, announcements, pamphlets, posters, Internet bulletin boards, nonschool organization websites and the like.

Distribution - handing nonschool written materials to others on school property or during school-sponsored events; placing upon desks, tables, on or in lockers; or engaging in any other manner of delivery of nonschool written materials to others while on school property or during school functions. When email, text messaging or other technological delivery is used as a means of distributing or accessing nonschool written materials via use of school equipment or while on school property or at school functions, it shall be governed by this policy.

Posting - publicly displaying nonschool written materials on school property or at school-sponsored events, including but not limited to affixing such materials to walls, doors, bulletin boards, easels, the outside of lockers, on district-sponsored websites, through other district-owned technology and the like.

Prohibited activities and materials - activities and materials which:

1. Are libelous, defamatory, obscene, lewd, vulgar, or profane.
2. Violate federal, state or local laws.
3. Violate Board policy or district ~~administrative~~ ^{delete} regulations.
4. Advocate the use or advertise the availability of any substance or material that may reasonably be believed to constitute a direct and substantial danger to the health or welfare of students, such as tobacco, alcohol or illegal drugs.
5. Incite violence.
6. Advocate use of force or urge violation of federal, state or municipal law, Board policy or district ~~administrative~~ ^{delete} regulations.
7. Interfere with or advocate interference with the rights of any individual or the orderly operation of the schools and their programs.

Authority

It is the policy of the Board that district facilities be used in accordance with the guidelines established in Board policy.[2]

The Board prohibits the use of students and staff members for advertising or promoting nonschool organizations, groups or individuals during instructional time or at school-sponsored locations or events not otherwise open to nonschool organizations, groups or individuals. [3][4]

Delegation of Responsibility

The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for carrying out the provisions of this policy, unless otherwise specifically noted in this policy.

Guidelines

Nonschool Activities/Materials

The Board recognizes the social and educational values that may be derived from student participation in various activities sponsored by **nonschool organizations, groups or individuals**, but specifies that unreasonable demands on the time and energies of students and staff **by such entities during school hours, or at school-sponsored activities** be prevented.

Requests for student participation in nonschool organizations, groups or individually sponsored activities must be made in writing to the Superintendent or designee in accordance with ~~administrative~~ regulations, written announcements and this policy.

Activities sponsored by nonschool organizations, groups or individuals may not occur, and nonschool written materials may not be used, during instructional time or school-sponsored activities unless they are of educational value to the school program, they benefit district students or the school community, and they are factually accurate. Prohibited activities or materials may never be used.

Where the nonschool entity is a for-profit entity that will benefit commercially from an activity or distribution of its material during instructional time, other factors must outweigh the commercial benefit to the nonschool entity; and the Board must approve proposals that would commercially benefit a for-profit entity.

A review of any activities or nonschool written materials under this policy shall not discriminate on the basis of content or viewpoint, except that prohibited activities or materials will be rejected, as will any activities or materials that do not comply with Board policy, ~~administrative~~ regulations, or written announcements relating to the proposed nonschool-sponsored activity or materials.

Participating students may not leave the school district unless the Board policy for field trips has been followed or the Board has granted special permission.[5]

Fundraising

Fundraising by **nonschool organizations, groups or individuals** is prohibited on school property or in the name of the school.[6]

Where activities or materials otherwise comply with this policy, ~~administrative~~ regulations and written announcements, fundraising activities may be announced.

Directory information regarding students or staff may only be released in accordance with law and Board policy. Directory information for students or staff members will not be released to nonschool organizations, groups or individuals that seek this information for the purpose of fundraising.

Scholarships/Awards

The Board is appreciative of the generosity of organizations that offer scholarships or awards to deserving students; but, in accepting such offers, the Board directs that established criteria be observed.

No information, either academic or personal, shall be released from a student's record for the purpose of selecting a scholarship or award winner without the permission of the student who is eighteen (18), or the parents/guardians of a student who is younger, in accordance with the Board's policy on student records.[7]

The scholarship or award, and any pertinent restrictions, shall be approved by the Board.

All pertinent information regarding the scholarship or award shall be submitted for review by the Superintendent or designee prior to the date on which it is to be presented.

Travel Services/Foreign Trips

Solicitation and sale of travel services for foreign trips to students may be permitted with the approval of the Board.

Sellers of travel services to students must meet the following criteria:

1. Belong to an association of certified sellers of travel.
2. Provide proof of insurance.
3. Submit references.
4. Provide proof of a performance bond.
5. Include in all information provided to students and parents/guardians that use of tobacco, alcohol and controlled substances will be prohibited.
6. Include in all information provided to students and parents/guardians that the activity is not a school-sponsored event.

Book	Policy Manual
Section	900 Community
Title	Relations With Intermediate Unit
Number	914
Status	From PSBA
Legal	<u>1. 24 P.S. 901-A</u> <u>2. 24 P.S. 902-A</u> <u>3. 24 P.S. 920-A</u> <u>4. 24 P.S. 910-A</u>

Authority

Each school district has an opportunity to participate in the services and programs offered by the assigned intermediate unit.[1][2]

It is the policy of this Board that cooperation and communication be maintained with Allegheny Intermediate Unit No. 3 to ensure maximum effectiveness of programs and services.

The Board shall annually review district programs that involve intermediate unit services and make whatever determinations such a review suggests. This review will normally take place prior to the district's approval of the proposed intermediate unit budget.[3]

In order to maintain a constructive relationship with the intermediate unit, the Board member elected by the Board is designated as the official liaison between the district and Allegheny Intermediate Unit No. 3.[4]

Delegation of Responsibility

The duties of the Board representative are to ensure that the Board receives necessary information and data that will lead to sound and valid judgments regarding decisions that involve participation by the district in the various programs and services offered by the intermediate unit.

Last Modified by Tammy Medellin on June 3, 2016

Book	Policy Manual
Section	900 Community
Title	Parental Organizations
Number	915
Status	

Authority

The Board recognizes voluntary organizations which exist solely to advance the welfare of children and youth in the home, school and community.

Guidelines

For organizations to become officially recognized by the Highlands School District, the following guidelines shall be met:

1. The organization shall have an established constitution and/or bylaws.
2. An annual budget shall be submitted.
3. The organization should strongly consider that its officers be bonded.
4. A list of the officers shall be submitted each year.
5. Each organization is limited to one (1) fundraising activity per year, unless otherwise approved by the district's administration.
6. In the event an organization is disbanded, the Board must be notified in writing, including the organization's plan for the disbursement of funds.
7. The school district does not supervise or establish by-laws for individual organizations.
8. The school district will not be held responsible for the actions of each organization.
9. The school district is not responsible for loss of funds for any organization.
10. The school district recognizes that all organizations are founded for the benefit of students, but the district has no authority over the actions of said organizations.
11. Items purchased by organizations become the property of the school district, and the organizations must obtain prior approval by the school district to purchase such items.
12. All organizations must be approved by the school district prior to their working with students.

Book	Policy Manual
Section	900 Community
Title	Volunteers
Number	916
Status	From PSBA
Legal	<u>1. 24 P.S. 510</u> <u>2. Pol. 824</u> <u>3. 23 Pa. C.S.A. 6303</u> <u>4. 23 Pa. C.S.A. 6344</u> <u>5. 23 Pa. C.S.A. 6344.2</u> <u>6. Pol. 907</u> <u>7. 23 Pa. C.S.A. 6344.3</u> <u>8. 23 Pa. C.S.A. 6344.4</u> <u>9. 24 P.S. 1418</u> <u>10. 28 PA Code 23.44</u> <u>11. 23 Pa. C.S.A. 6311</u> <u>12. Pol. 806</u> <u>13. Pol. 123</u> <u>14. Pol. 123.1</u> <u>15. Pol. 123.2</u> <u>16. Pol. 216</u> <u>23 Pa. C.S.A. 6301 et seq</u>

Purpose

The Board supports and encourages the participation of parents/guardians and community residents to enhance the educational, co-curricular and extracurricular programs of the district.

Authority

The Board may adopt and enforce reasonable rules and regulations governing volunteers and their participation in the activities of the district.[1]

The Board directs that all volunteers shall be informed of conduct that is prohibited and the disciplinary actions that may be applied for violation of Board policies, ~~administrative~~ regulations, rules and procedures.[1]

All volunteers shall be expected to maintain professional, moral and ethical relationships with district students that are conducive to an effective, safe learning environment.[2]

Definitions

The following words and phrases, when used in this policy, shall have the meaning given to them in this section:

Adult - an individual eighteen (18) years of age or older.[3]

Certifications - refers to the child abuse history clearance statement; the state criminal history background check; and where applicable, the federal criminal history background check, required by the Child Protective Services Law.[4][5]

Direct volunteer contact - the care, supervision, guidance or control of children and routine interaction with children.[3]

Person responsible for the child's welfare - a person who provides permanent or temporary care, supervision, mental health diagnosis or treatment, training or control of a child in lieu of parental care, supervision and control.[3]

Routine interaction - regular and repeated contact that is integral to a person's volunteer responsibilities.[3]

Visitor - a parent/guardian, adult resident, educator, official or other individual who is not a school employee or independent contractor, and who visits a school or attends or participates in an event or activity at a school, but whose role is less substantial than would be sufficient to meet the definition of volunteer for purposes of this policy.[6]

Volunteer - is an adult, whose role is more than that of a visitor, who voluntarily offers a service to the district without receiving compensation from the district. A volunteer is not a school employee.[5]

The two (2) classifications of volunteers are:

1. **Position Volunteer** - an adult applying for or holding an unpaid position with a school or a program, activity or service, as a person responsible for the child's welfare or having direct volunteer contact with children. Examples include, but are not limited to, field trip chaperones, tutors, coaches, activity advisor, recess or library aides, etc.
2. **Guest Volunteer** - an adult who voluntarily provides a service to the district, without compensation, who: (1) works directly under the supervision and direction of a school administrator, a teacher or other member of the school staff; and (2) does not have direct volunteer contact. Examples include, but are not limited to, volunteering to assist in classroom celebrations, school assemblies, or school concerts; reading to students; collecting tickets at sporting events; working concession stands; participating in "Career Day," etc.

Delegation of Responsibility

The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for the selection and management of volunteers and for ensuring compliance with Board policies, ~~administrative~~ regulations, rules and procedures.

At the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, a volunteer's service may be discontinued at any time.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop ~~administrative~~ regulations to implement this policy and manage the selection, use and supervision of volunteers.

Guidelines

Each prospective position volunteer shall complete and submit a volunteer application.

The names of all position volunteers shall be submitted for approval by the Superintendent or designee.

The names of all guest volunteers shall be submitted for approval by the building principal or designee.

Upon approval, volunteers shall be placed on the list of approved volunteers.

Approval shall be required prior to beginning service as a volunteer.

Certifications

Prior to approval, all position volunteers shall submit the following information:

1. PA Child Abuse History Certification - which must be less than sixty (60) months old.[5]
2. PA State Police Criminal History Record Information - which must be less than sixty (60) months old.[5]
3. Disclosure Statement for Volunteers - which is a statement swearing or affirming the applicant has not been disqualified from service by reason of conviction of designated criminal offenses or being listed as the perpetrator in a founded report of child abuse.[4][5][7]

If a position volunteer has not been a resident of Pennsylvania during the entirety of the previous ten (10) year period, the position volunteer must also submit the following information:[5]

1. Federal Criminal History Report - issued at any time since the volunteer established residency.

The Superintendent or designee shall review the information and determine if information is disclosed that precludes service as a volunteer.

Information submitted by volunteers in accordance with this policy shall be maintained centrally in a manner similar to that used for school employees.

Position volunteers shall obtain and submit new certifications every sixty (60) months.[8]

A student, eighteen (18) years of age or older, who is volunteering for an event or activity sponsored by the school in which the student is enrolled and occurring on the school's grounds, shall not be required to submit certifications except when the event or activity is for children in the care of a child-care service or the student will otherwise be responsible for the welfare of a child.[5]

Tuberculosis Test

Prior to participating in student activities, volunteers shall undergo a test for tuberculosis, when required by and in accordance with the regulations and guidance of the Pennsylvania Department of Health.[9][10]

Arrest or Conviction Reporting Requirements

Position volunteers shall report to the Superintendent or designee, in writing, within seventy-two (72) hours, an arrest or conviction required to be reported by law or notification that the volunteer has been named as a perpetrator in a founded or indicated report pursuant to the Child Protective Services Law.[7]

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately require a position volunteer to submit new certifications if the Superintendent or designee has a reasonable belief that the volunteer was arrested for or has been convicted of an offense required to be reported by law, was named as a perpetrator in a founded or indicated report, or has provided written notice of such occurrence.[7]

Failure to accurately report such occurrences may subject the position volunteer to disciplinary action up to and including denial of volunteer service and criminal prosecution.[7]

Child Abuse Reporting

All volunteers who have reasonable cause to suspect that a child is the victim of child abuse shall make a report of suspected child abuse in accordance with applicable law, Board policy and ~~administrative~~ regulations.[11][12]

Supervision

Each volunteer shall be under the supervision of a designated school administrator, teacher or other member of the school staff.

Training

Volunteers shall attend orientation and training sessions, as appropriate to the nature of their volunteer service. When training is provided for school employees relating to the legal obligations of employers and educational institutions, consideration shall be given to which volunteers should also receive that training.[13][14][15][12]

Confidentiality

No volunteer shall be permitted access to confidential student information unless the supervisor has determined that such access is

necessary for the volunteer to fulfill his/her responsibilities. Volunteers with access to confidential student information shall maintain the confidentiality of that information in accordance with district policies and procedures and applicable law. If a volunteer has questions about the confidentiality of student information, the volunteer should consult with the building principal.[16]

Liability Insurance

The district may provide liability insurance coverage for volunteers appropriate to the nature of their roles and the risk management needs of the district.

Reimbursement for Expenses

Volunteers may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in the course of their volunteer service only when authorized in advance by the Superintendent or designee.

Acknowledgement

Each volunteer shall affirm in writing that s/he has been provided with a copy of, has read, understands and agrees to comply with this policy.

Last Modified by Tammy Medellin on June 3, 2016

Book	Policy Manual
Section	900 Community
Title	Parental/Family Involvement
Number	917
Status	From PSBA
Legal	<u>24 P.S. 510</u>

Purpose

The Board recognizes the vital role parents/guardians and family play in the education, welfare and values of their children. The district is committed to the belief that all students can learn and acknowledges that schools and families share a commitment to the educational success of students.

Definition

Parental and family involvement shall be defined as an ongoing process that assists parents/guardians and families to meet their basic obligation as a child's first educator, promotes clear two-way dialogue between home and school, and supports parents/guardians as leaders and decision-makers concerning the education of their children at all levels.

Authority

The Board recognizes that the responsibility for each student's education is shared by the school and the family and acknowledges that schools and families must work as knowledgeable, cooperative partners to effectively educate all students. To this end, the Board shall support the development, implementation, and continuing evaluation of a parental and family involvement program that will involve parents/guardians at all grade levels in a variety of roles.

Delegation of Responsibility

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate and report to the Board on the effectiveness of the district's parental involvement efforts, including, but not limited to, input from parents/guardians and district staff on the adequacy of parental involvement opportunities and barriers that may inhibit parent/guardian participation.

Guidelines

Because parents/guardians are familiar with the needs, problems and abilities of their children, staff should communicate with and seek their input throughout the school year.

The parental and family involvement program may include the following:

1. Support for parents/guardians as school leaders and decision-makers, in addition to serving in advisory roles.
2. Promotion of clear two-way communication between the school and the family about school programs and student progress.
3. Assistance to parents/guardians and families in developing parenting skills to foster positive relationships at home, to support children's educational efforts, and to assist their children with learning at home.
4. Involvement of parents/guardians, with appropriate training, in instructional and support roles at the school.

Book	Policy Manual
Section	900 Community
Title	Title I Parental Involvement
Number	918
Status	
Legal	<p><u>1. 20 U.S.C. 6318</u></p> <p>2. Pol. 138</p> <p>3. Pol. 102</p> <p>22 PA Code 403.1</p>

Purpose

The Board recognizes that parental involvement contributes to the achievement of academic standards by students participating in Title I programs. The Board views the education of students as a cooperative effort among the school, parents/guardians and community.

Authority

In compliance with federal law, the district and parents/guardians of students participating in Title I programs shall jointly develop and agree upon a written parental involvement policy. When developing and implementing this policy, the district shall ensure the policy describes how the district will:[1]

1. Involve parents/guardians in the joint development of the district's overall Title I plan and the process of school review and improvement.
2. Provide the coordination, technical assistance and other support necessary to assist participating schools in planning and implementing effective parental involvement activities to improve student academic achievement and school performance.
3. Develop activities that promote the schools' and parents'/guardians' capacity for strong parental involvement.
4. Coordinate and integrate parental involvement strategies with appropriate programs, as provided by law.
5. Involve parents/guardians in an annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of the policy in improving the academic quality of schools served under Title I.
6. Identify barriers to participation by parents/guardians who are economically disadvantaged, are disabled, have limited English proficiency, have limited literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic minority.
7. Use findings of annual evaluations to design strategies for more effective parental involvement.
8. Involve parents/guardians in the activities of schools served under Title I.

The Board shall adopt and distribute the parental involvement policy, which shall be incorporated into the district's Title I plan and shall be evaluated annually, with parental involvement.[1]

Delegation of Responsibility

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's Title I parental involvement policy, plan and programs comply with the requirements of federal law.

The building principal and/or Title I staff shall provide to parents/guardians of students participating in Title I programs:

1. Explanation of the reasons supporting their child's selection for the program.
2. Set of objectives to be addressed.
3. Description of the services to be provided.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that information and reports provided to parents/guardians are in an understandable and uniform format and in a language the parents/guardians can understand.[1][2]

Guidelines

An annual meeting of parents/guardians of participating Title I students shall be held to explain the goals and purposes of the Title I program. Parents/Guardians shall be given the opportunity to participate in the design, development, operation and evaluation of the program. Parents/Guardians shall be encouraged to participate in planning activities, to offer suggestions, and to ask questions regarding policies and programs.[1]

In addition to the required annual meeting, additional parent/guardian meetings shall be held at various times of the day and evening. At these meetings, parents/guardians shall be provided:[1]

1. Information about programs provided under Title I.
2. Description and explanation of the curriculum in use, the forms of academic assessment used to measure student progress, and the proficiency levels students are expected to meet.
3. Opportunities to formulate suggestions and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions relating to the education of their children.
4. Opportunities to submit parent/guardian comments about the program to the district level.

If sufficient, Title I funding may be used to facilitate parent/guardian attendance at meetings through payment of transportation and child care costs.

Opportunities shall be provided for parents/guardians to meet with the classroom and Title I teachers to discuss their child's progress.

Parents/Guardians may be given guidance as to how they can assist at home in the education of their child.

School-Parental Compact

Each school in the district receiving Title I funds shall jointly develop with parents/guardians of students served in the program a School-Parental Compact outlining the manner in which parents/guardians, school staff and students share responsibility for improved student achievement in meeting academic standards. The compact shall:[3]

1. Describe the school's responsibility to provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a supportive and effective learning environment, enabling students in the Title I program to meet the district's academic standards.
2. Indicate the ways in which parents/guardians will be responsible for supporting their children's learning, such as monitoring attendance, homework completion, and television watching; volunteering in the classroom; and participating, as appropriate, in decisions related to their child's education and positive use of extracurricular time.
3. Address the importance of parent-teacher communication on an ongoing basis through, at a minimum, parent-teacher conferences, frequent reports to parents/guardians, and reasonable access to staff.

Last Modified by Michele Bloch on January 27, 2017